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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
The Board of Education 
Barre Unified Union School District #97 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Barre Unified Union School 
District #97 (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the 
General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are required to be independent of the District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, and Government Auditing Standards, we 
 

• exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

 

• conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that 
we identified during the audit. 
 

Required Supplementary Information 
 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and schedules 1 and 2 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
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Supplementary Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information 
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 2024, 
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting; on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and on other matters. The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auding 

Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
Montpelier, Vermont 
December 30, 2024 
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The management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) of Barre Unified Union School District #97 (the District) 
financial performance provides an overall review of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2024. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial performance as a 
whole. Readers should also review the independent auditor’s letter, the basic financial statements, the notes to 
the financial statements, and the supplementary information to enhance their understanding of the District’s 
financial performance. 

 

Like most Districts, the Barre Unified Union School District carries healthy fund balances in its General Fund, 
Capital Projects Fund, Tax Stabilization Fund, Food Service Fund, and Grant Funds. 

 
Financial Highlights  
 
Key financial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2024, are as follows: 
 

• The financial statements as of June 30, 2024 reflect the government-wide net position increase of 
$2,964,693. The net position of governmental activities increased $3,031,103, the business-type activities 
net position decreased $79,050, and the component unit net position increased by $12,640. 

 

• Government-wide revenues totaled $68.3 million. General revenues accounted for $39.9 million or 58.4% 
of total revenues. Program revenues in the form of charges for services, grants, contributions, and other 
sources accounted for $28.4 million or 41.6% of total revenues. 

 

• The District had $65.2 million in expenses related to governmental activities; $28.4 million of these 
expenses were offset by program-specific charges for services, grants, contributions, and other sources. 
General revenues (primarily taxes and subsidies) of $39.9 million were sufficient in funding the remaining 
cost of programs which increased governmental activities net position by $3,031,103. 

 

• Among the governmental funds, the General Fund had $57.3 million in revenues and $56.6 million in 
expenditures. The General Fund also had $1 million in net other financing uses (consisting of transfers out, 
and an insurance recovery). The General Fund’s fund balance decreased by $270,675.  

 
Using this Annual Report 
 
The District’s annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements that show 
information for the District as a whole, its various funds, and its fiduciary responsibilities. The statements 
are organized in a manner so that the reader might understand the District. First, the statements show the 
District as a financial whole by presenting information on a government-wide basis. Then, the statements 
provide the reader with a detailed look at specific financial activities of the District. 

 
The first two statements are the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position and the Government-Wide 
Statement of Activities. These statements provide information about the financial status and operations of the 
entire District. 
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Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail, showing the District’s most significant funds in 
separate columns and non-major funds totaled in one column. For governmental funds, these statements tell 
how the services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. Fiduciary fund 
statements present information for relationships where the District acts solely as a trustee or agent of the party 
to whom the resources belong. 
 
The notes to financial statements further explain the information presented in the financial statements and 
provide more detailed data. The notes are an integral part of the financial statements. The notes are followed by 
a section of supplementary information that further explains and supports the financial statements with 
additional post-employment benefits plan information. 
 
Reporting the District as a Whole 
 
The analysis of the District as a whole in the MD&A begins on page 6. While this report contains the large 
number of funds used by the District to provide programs and activities, the view of the District as a whole 
looks at all financial transactions and asks the question, “Is the condition of the District better or worse as a 
result of the operations during the school year?” The government-wide statements, which begin on page 11, 
present information about the District as a whole in a way that helps to answer this question. The statement of 
net position includes all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and net position. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement 
of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. Both statements are prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is similar to the method used by most private sector companies. 

 
The government-wide statements report the District’s net position. Assets plus deferred outflows of resources 
less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, as reported in the Statement of Net Position, are one way to 
measure the District’s financial health, or net position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net 
position, as reported in the statement of activities, are used as one indicator of whether the District’s 
financial health is improving or deteriorating. The District exists to provide services, primarily educational, 
to its students so it does not have the profit-generation goal of private-sector companies. For this reason, the 
reader must also consider nonfinancial factors, such as the quality of the education provided, when assessing 
the overall health of the District. 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are divided into three categories: 

 

• Governmental Activities  -  Most of the District’s programs and services are reported under this category 
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant services, pupil 
transportation, and extracurricular activities. These activities are primarily financed by property taxes, 
subsidies and grants from the federal and state governments. 

 

• Business-Type Activities  -  Up to June 30, 2022 the District operated an adult education program whereby 
it charges students, staff, and other users in order to cover the costs of the services provided. The District 
also operated a building trades program, which ended during a prior year, which is funded by proceeds from 
house sales. These funds reported residual balances at June 30, 2024 which are going to get paid to the 
Central Vermont Career Center School District (CVCCSD) during the year ended June 30, 2025. 

 

• Component Unit  -  The District has identified the Spaulding High School Foundation, LTD. (SHS 
Foundation) as a discretely presented component unit in accordance with GASB Statement No. 61, The 
Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus. Component units are legally separate entities that are included in the 
District’s financial statements due to fiscal dependency or common management. In the case of the SHS 
Foundation, it is a legally separate nonprofit entity. The relationship between the SHS Foundation and the 
District includes a financial benefit, as the intent of the SHS Foundation is to support the District. The SHS 
Foundation is reported in a separate column in the District’s government-wide financial statements. 
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Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds 
 
The analysis of the District’s major funds begins on page 8. The fund financial statements, which provide 
detailed information about the most significant funds, not the District as a whole, begin on page 14. The 
District’s funds are divided into three broad types - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each type of fund 
uses a different accounting approach. 
 

• Governmental Funds  -  Most of the District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus 
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for 
spending in future periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual 
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. 
Governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s general government 
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information is used to determine whether 
there are more or less financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance District programs. 
The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (as reported in the statement of net 
position and the statement of activities) and governmental funds is described in the financial statements on 
pages 16 and 19. 

 

• Proprietary Funds  -  Proprietary funds (described on pages 22 through 24) consist solely of activities 
treated as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Since the same basis of 
accounting is used by proprietary funds and business-type activities, the information presented in total is 
essentially the same. The fund financial statements do provide some additional detail and information, such 
as cash flows. 

 

• Fiduciary Funds  -  The District acts as fiscal agent for certain student groups and other outside 
groups. This activity is reported separately by the District. All of the District’s fiduciary activities are 
reported in a  separate statement on pages 2 5  a n d  2 6 . These activities are excluded from the District’s 
other statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its operations and does not control 
these assets. 

 

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole 

 

Recall that the statement of net position provides the perspective of the District as a whole (primary 
government and component unit). The Table below provides the District’s net position at June 30, 2024 and 
June 30, 2023, respectively. 

 

2024 2023 Restated Net Change

Assets

Current assets $ 12,283,872   $ 12,664,857    $ (380,985)       

Noncurrent assets 23,426,308   20,211,596    3,214,712      

Total Assets 35,710,180 32,876,453 2,833,727    

Deferred outflows of resources 746,886       1,053,380      (306,494)       
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2024 2023 Restated Net Change

Liabilities

Current liabiliites 5,602,716     5,572,536      30,180          

Noncurrent liabilities 5,330,267     5,598,412      (268,145)       

Total Liabilities 10,932,983 11,170,948 (237,965)     

Deferred inflows of resources 185,929       385,424        (199,495)       

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 19,503,316   15,907,320    3,595,996      

Restricted 6,240,291     6,384,378      (144,087)       

Unrestricted (405,453)      81,763          (487,216)       

Total Net Position $ 25,338,154 $ 22,373,461 $ 2,964,693    
 

 
The District’s net position consists of $19.5 million invested in capital assets (such as buildings, and land). The 
restricted net position of $6 million consists of the balances in capital projects funds that are voter committed 
for capital projects and tax stabilization, as well as restricted Grant Funds, restricted Food Service funds, and 
Other Special Revenue Fund restricted fund balances. The decrease in the unrestricted net position to a deficit 
of $405,453 is primarily due to in process capital projects at June 30, 2024 that are partially being funded 
through available Capital Project Fund amounts available from prior years. 
 
The results of this year’s operations as a whole are reported in the statement of activities on page 13. All 
expenses are reported in the first column. Specific charges, grants, revenues, and subsidies that directly relate 
to specific expense categories are listed as program revenues in the second, third, and fourth columns. The fifth 
and sixth columns show the amount of the District’s governmental and business-type activities, respectively, 
that must be supported by general revenues and transfers. The eighth column shows amounts relating to the 
SHS Foundation component unit. The District’s largest general revenue is the education spending grant. The 
table below takes the information from the statement of activities and rearranges the line items slightly to 
display total revenues for the year. 
 

2024 2023 Restated Net Change
Expenses

Education - General $ 57,124,821   $ 56,163,139   $ 961,682        

Education - Career Center -                  351,735        (351,735)       

Grants 5,971,757     5,338,426     633,331        

Food service 1,941,510     1,682,703     258,807        

Other programs 5,581           184,547        (178,966)       

Adult education 82,138         -                  82,138          

Component unit 13,225         14,500         (1,275)          

Interest 191,237        126,715        64,522          

Total Expenses 65,330,269 63,861,765 1,468,504   

Program Revenues
Grants and Contributions 27,260,124   29,057,903   (1,797,779)    

Charges for Services 606,470        466,889        139,581        

Other 576,709        743,938        (167,229)       

Total Program Revenues 28,443,303 30,268,730 (1,825,427)  
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2024 2023 Restated Net Change
General Revenues

Education Spending Grant 39,645,397   37,491,934   2,153,463     

Interest income 206,262        76,603         129,659        

Total General Revenues 39,851,659 37,568,537 2,283,122   

Total Revenues 68,294,962 67,837,267 457,695      

Change in Net Position $ 2,964,693   $ 3,975,502   $ (1,010,809)  
 

 

The table above shows that total revenues were more than total expenses for the District as a whole by 
$2,964,693 for the year ended June 30, 2024. It should be noted that although the District is required to 
present government-wide information using the accrual basis of accounting, as detailed above, the District 
must still prepare its budgets and report its operations under the modified accrual basis of accounting used 
in the fund financial statements. Operations in relation to the District’s budget will be discussed later in this 
report under the “Financial Analysis of the District by Funds” section. 
 
The statement of activities breaks the expenses of the District into functions or programs. These expenses are 
offset by related revenues (charges for services, grants, and contributions) before the general revenues of the 
District are applied. 

 

The dependence upon local taxes for governmental activities is apparent. Program revenue provides only 
49.8% of the funding needed for instruction, the major program area of the District. Even if all of the 
unrestricted grants, subsidies, and contributions are used toward instruction, there remains a need for more 
than $28.7 million of the funding for instruction to come from local taxes and other general revenues. 

 
Financial Analysis of the District by Funds 

 
As previously noted, the District uses a number of funds to control and manage resources for particular 
purposes. Information about the District’s major governmental funds starts on page 14. These funds are 
accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Combined, the governmental funds had total 
revenues of $68.2 million, a n d  expenditures of $68.6 million. The net change in fund balance for the year 
was a d e crease of $346,071. The decrease in fund balance is primarily related to the utilization of Capital 
Projects Fund resources to fund capital spending. 

 
The general fund decreased its fund balance by $270,675 to a balance of $797,898. The District had budgeted 
to utilize $700,000 with a Tax Stabilization Fund appropriation but did not end up needing to. This was due to 
a large beginning General Fund fund balance available for the year ended June 30, 2024 as well as a significant 
increase in grant funds from the State of Vermont as a result of a revised special education funding formula and 
other unbudgeted revenues.   

 
Nonspendable fund balance in the amount of $8,910 corresponds with the inventory amount included in assets. 
Restricted fund balance in the amount of $2,287,124 is the fund balance for the Grant Funds, Food Service 
Fund, and Other Special Revenue Fund. The District’s voters have committed $1,652,167 for future capital 
projects and $2,257,962 for future tax rate stabilization. Remaining Board assigned fund balance of $208,123 
relates to board assigned fund balance for future capital project costs. The remaining fund balance consists of 
an unassigned General Fund fund balance of $797,898. 
 
Long-term Debt 
 
As of June 30, 2024, the District had an obligation to repay debt of $3,744,224. The District is indebted to the 
Vermont Municipal Bond Bank for a 2021 series 1 bond which matures in November 2036. The two other notes 
mature in July 2028, and July 2026.   
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Financial Highlights 

  
The District’s budget is prepared according to Vermont law and is based on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. The fund with a formally adopted budget is the General Fund. The General Fund budget to actual 
statement can be found on pages 20 and 21. 

 
Total General Fund revenue from all sources was $1,369,483 more than budgeted. Expenditures were $685,544 
more than budgeted. The end result is that the District reduced its General Fund fund balance by $270,675 
from a beginning surplus of $1,068,573 to $797,898 at June 30, 2024. 

 
Relative to the budget, the following significant variations occurred during the fiscal year: 

 

• The District budgeted to utilize $700,000 in tax stabilization funds to cover expenditures and those funds 
did not need to be utilized in the current year. They will be carried over to future years. 
  

• State grant revenues were higher than anticipated but were offset by related expenditures. 
 

• Federal grant revenues were higher than anticipated but were offset by related expenditures.  
 

• Tuition revenue exceeded the anticipated budget by $167,564. This resulted from a higher number of 
students from sending districts than was anticipated. 

 

• Technology infrastructure expenses which were primarily offset by E-rate funds. 
 
The District’s General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2024 was $797,898. 
 
The District’s Future    
 
The District continues to have one of the lowest per pupil spending compared to other schools in Vermont. 
The District will likely not be able to continue to sustain this low spending in future years because of 
collective bargaining agreement increases as well as the double-digit health insurance increases over the past 
4 years. The unfunded legislative, associations, and agency of education mandates continue to present a 
financial hardship to this District. One example is 16 V.S.A. 1944d, Employer Annual Charge for Teacher 
Health Care. This is an annual assessment paid to the State of Vermont Office of the State Treasurer for 
teachers new to the retirement system on July 1, 2015. The District paid $226,943 in fiscal year 2024 and this 
number will continue to increase exponentially each year. In addition, Act 11 of 2018 resulted in the 
arbitrator choosing the Vermont NEA’s proposal which has had significant impact, increasing the cost of 
health insurance benefits. 
 
Over 50% of the leadership/administrative team turned over in FY25, this included a 1-year interim 
Superintendent. Maintaining stable leadership in schools is crucial because strong, consistent leadership 
ensures continuity in decision-making, fosters a positive school culture, and supports long-term educational 
goals. Frequent transitions or resignations can disrupt these efforts, impacting student outcomes and staff 
morale. 
 
School boards can help prevent such issues by: 
 

1. Providing support and professional development: Offering resources and training to leadership to 
enhance their effectiveness and job satisfaction. 
 

2. Promoting a positive work environment: Fostering a culture of respect, recognition, and 
collaboration helps retain leadership and reduce burnout. 
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The legislature enacted Act 127, which is designed to improve student equity by adjusting the school funding 
formula and providing education quality and funding oversight. Pupil weights adjust student counts 
according to different student needs or circumstances and are used to account for the potentially higher costs of 
educating these students. Student enrollment continues to decline in Barre. During the FY25 budget 
development, some changes complicated the budget-building process and made a confusing funding formula 
even more complicated. The District had a difficult time passing a budget, finally getting a positive vote on 
September 17, 2024. This was also due in part to the fractured board which spilled into the community. The 
Governor has stressed the need to contain education spending. Future budgets will need to focus on class size, 
enrollment, and cost containment as administrators look for ways to provide quality education at a minimal 
increase to the taxpayers. 
 
Contacting the District’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If 
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Business Manager at 
the central office at 120 Ayers Street, Barre, VT 05641. 



BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024

(Page 1 of 2)

Primary Government Component Unit

Spaulding

Governmental Business-type High School
    Activities       Activities   Totals Foundation, LTD.

ASSETS:

Current assets -
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,759,974    $ -         $ 6,759,974     $ 43,024         
Accounts receivable 5,346,946    -         5,346,946     -                
Inventory 8,910           -         8,910            -                

Due from (to) other activities 125,004       -         125,004        14                

Total current assets 12,240,834  -         12,240,834   43,038         

Noncurrent assets -
Capital assets 53,422,444  -         53,422,444   -                
less - accumulated depreciation (30,174,904) -         (30,174,904)  -                
Lease assets 216,362       -         216,362        -                
less - accumulated amortization (37,594)        -         (37,594)         -                

Total noncurrent assets 23,426,308  -         23,426,308   -                

Total assets 35,667,142  -         35,667,142   43,038         

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

OF RESOURCES:

Deferred pension expense 746,886       -         746,886        -                

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities -
Accounts payable 1,249,958    -         1,249,958     -                
Accrued expenses 3,769,710    -         3,769,710     -                
Current portion - Long-term debt 468,086       -         468,086        -                

- Lease liability 79,647         -         79,647          -                

Accrued interest 35,315         -         35,315          -                

Total current liabilities 5,602,716    -         5,602,716     -                

Noncurrent liabilities -
Accrued compensated absences 137,250       -         137,250        -                
Net pension liability 1,817,267    -         1,817,267     -                

Long-term debt 3,276,138    -         3,276,138     -                
Lease liability 99,612         -         99,612          -                

Total noncurrent liabilities 5,330,267    -         5,330,267     -                

Total liabilities 10,932,983  -         10,932,983   -                

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024

(Page 2 of 2)

Primary Government Component Unit

Spaulding

Governmental Business-type High School
    Activities       Activities   Totals Foundation, LTD.

DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES:

Deferred pension credits 176,947       -         176,947        -                
Unavailable grants 8,982           -         8,982            -                

Total deferred inflows
of resources 185,929       -         185,929        -                

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets 19,503,316  -         19,503,316   -                
Restricted 6,197,253    -         6,197,253     43,038         
Unrestricted (405,453)      -         (405,453)       -                

Total net position $ 25,295,116  $ -         $ 25,295,116   $ 43,038         

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government Component Unit

Spaulding
Grants and Charges for Governmental Business-type High School

Expenses Contributions   Services  Other   Activities    Activities  Totals Foundation, LTD.
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS:

Governmental activities -
Education - General $ 57,124,821   $ 16,547,452  $ 491,886     $ 460,033    $ (39,625,450) $ -        $ (39,625,450) $ -        
Grants 5,971,757     8,763,718    -             113,588    2,905,549    -        2,905,549     -        
Food service 1,941,510     1,823,089    114,584     -           (3,837)          -        (3,837)          -        
Other programs 5,581            100,000       -             -           94,419         -        94,419          -        
Interest 191,237        -               -             -           (191,237)      -        (191,237)      -        

  Total governmental activities 65,234,906   27,234,259  606,470     573,621    (36,820,556) -        (36,820,556) -        

Business-type activities -

Adult education 82,138          -               -             -           -               (82,138) (82,138)        -        
Building trades -                -               -             3,088        -               3,088     3,088            -        

  Total business-type activities 82,138          -               -             3,088        -               (79,050) (79,050)        -        

Total primary government $ 65,317,044   $ 27,234,259  $ 606,470     $ 576,709    (36,820,556) (79,050) (36,899,606) -        

Component unit $ 13,225          $ 25,865         $ -             $ -           -               -        -               12,640   

GENERAL REVENUES - EDUCATION SPENDING GRANT 39,645,397  -        39,645,397   -        
- INTEREST INCOME 206,262       -        206,262        -        

39,851,659  -        39,851,659   -        

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 3,031,103    (79,050) 2,952,053     12,640   

NET POSITION, July 1, 2023 (See Note 14):

As previously reported 22,181,181  79,050   22,260,231   11,729   
Aggregate restatements 82,832         -        82,832          18,669   

As restated 22,264,013  79,050   22,343,063   30,398   

NET POSITION, June 30, 2024 $ 25,295,116  $ -        $ 25,295,116   $ 43,038   

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2024

Food Other Special Capital Tax Totals

General Grant Service Revenue Projects Stabilization Governmental

     Fund   Funds   Fund    Fund    Fund    Fund       Funds     

ASSETS

Cash and

  cash equivalents $ 6,617,566   $ -            $ 142,408    $ -         $ -            $ -           $ 6,759,974   
Inventory -              -            8,910        -         -            -           8,910          
Accounts receivable 5,184,450   162,496    -           -         -            -           5,346,946   

Due from other funds -              1,047,522 1,124,407 221,602 1,860,290 2,257,962 6,511,783   

Total assets $ 11,802,016 $ 1,210,018 $ 1,275,725 $ 221,602 $ 1,860,290 $ 2,257,962 $ 18,627,613 

LIABILITIES, 

DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES

AND FUND EQUITY

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $ 847,105      $ 310,223    $ 92,630      $ -         $ -            $ -           $ 1,249,958   

Accrued expenditures 3,769,710   -            -           -         -            -           3,769,710   
Due to other funds 6,386,779   -            -           -         -            -           6,386,779   

Total liabilities 11,003,594 310,223    92,630      -         -            -           11,406,447 

DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES:

Unavailable grants 524             8,458        -           -         -            -           8,982          

(Page 1 of 3)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2024

Food Other Special Capital Tax Totals

General Grant Service Revenue Projects Stabilization Governmental

     Fund   Funds   Fund    Fund    Fund    Fund       Funds     

FUND EQUITY:

  Fund balances - 

Nonspendable -              -            8,910        -         -            -           8,910          

Restricted -              891,337    1,174,185 221,602 -            -           2,287,124   

Committed -              -            -           -         1,652,167 2,257,962 3,910,129   

Assigned -              -            -           -         208,123    -           208,123      

Unassigned 797,898      -            -           -         -            -           797,898      

Total fund balance 797,898      891,337    1,183,095 221,602 1,860,290 2,257,962 7,212,184   

Total liabilities, 

deferred inflows

of resources and

fund equity $ 11,802,016 $ 1,210,018 $ 1,275,725 $ 221,602 $ 1,860,290 $ 2,257,962 $ 18,627,613 

(Page 2 of 3)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2024

(Page 3 of 3)

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:

Amount reported on Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds - total fund balances $ 7,212,184    

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Government-wide 

Statement of Net Position are different because -

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and are

therefore not reported in the funds.

Capital assets 53,422,444  

Accumulated depreciation (30,174,904) 

Lease assets 216,362       

Accumulated amortization (37,594)        

Liabilities not due and payable in the year are not reported in the

governmental funds.

Accrued compensated absences (137,250)      

Long-term debt (3,744,224)   

Accrued interest on long-term debt (35,315)        

Lease liability (179,259)      

Balances related to net pension asset or liability and related deferred outflows/inflows

of resources are not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred pension expense 746,886       

Deferred pension credits (176,947)      

Net pension liability (1,817,267)   

Net position of governmental activities - Government-wide Statement of Net Position $ 25,295,116  

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Food Other Special Capital Tax Totals

General Grant Service Revenue Projects Stabilization Governmental

  Fund   Funds   Fund    Fund    Fund    Fund       Funds     

REVENUES:

Education spending grant $ 39,645,397 $ -            $ -             $ -          $ -              $ -            $ 39,645,397   
Intergovernmental -

State 16,239,978 735,336    568,153    -          100,000      -            17,643,467   
Federal 158,018      8,028,382 1,254,936 -          -              -            9,441,336     

Local -
Tuition 404,564      -            -             -          -              -            404,564        
Charges for services 87,322        -            114,584    -          -              -            201,906        

E-rate 149,456      -            -             -          -              -            149,456        
Interest 205,888      -            374           -          -              -            206,262        

Other 418,906      113,588    -             -          -              -            532,494        

Total revenues 57,309,529 8,877,306 1,938,047 -          100,000      -            68,224,882   
    

EXPENDITURES:

Salaries 28,213,688 3,296,143 198,177    -          -              -            31,708,008   
Benefits 13,306,147 1,025,462 64,010      -          -              -            14,395,619   
Professional services 4,159,543   670,119    1,373,337 -          -              -            6,202,999     
Purchased services 6,778,437   97,225      1,845        -          -              -            6,877,507     
Supplies and materials 1,659,628   882,808    235,744    1,070       -              -            2,779,250     
Facilities 1,103,539   -            26,939      -          4,511          -            1,134,989     
Miscellaneous -              -            95             -          -              -            95                 
Capital outlay - capital assets 646,409      2,846,297 8,394        -          1,254,314   -            4,755,414     
Debt service - debt principal 461,714      -            -             -          -              -            461,714        

(Page 1 of 3)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Food Other Special Capital Tax Totals
General Grant Service Revenue Projects Stabilization Governmental

  Fund   Funds   Fund    Fund    Fund    Fund       Funds     
EXPENDITURES

(CONTINUED):

Debt service - lease principal 98,589        -            -             -          -              -            98,589          

- debt interest 196,257      -            -             -          -              -            196,257        

- lease interest 1,639          -            -             -          -              -            1,639            

Total expenditures 56,625,590 8,818,054 1,908,541 1,070       1,258,825   -            68,612,080   

EXCESS OF REVENUES

OR (EXPENDITURES) 683,939      59,252      29,506      (1,070)     (1,158,825) -            (387,198)       

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES):

Insurance recovery 41,127        -            -             -          -              -            41,127          

Transfers in (out) (995,741)     -            -             -          295,741      700,000    -                

Total other financing
sources (uses) (954,614)     -            -             -          295,741      700,000    41,127          

NET CHANGE IN

FUND BALANCES (270,675)     59,252      29,506      (1,070)     (863,084)    700,000    (346,071)       

FUND BALANCES,

JULY 1, 2023 (See Note 14):

As previously reported 995,741      832,085    1,153,589 222,672   2,713,374   1,557,962 7,475,423     
Aggregate restatements 72,832        -            -             -          10,000        -            82,832          

As restated 1,068,573   832,085    1,153,589 222,672   2,723,374   1,557,962 7,558,255     

FUND BALANCES,
JUNE 30, 2024 $ 797,898      $ 891,337    $ 1,183,095 $ 221,602   $ 1,860,290   $ 2,257,962 $ 7,212,184     

(Page 2 of 3)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

(Page 3 of 3)

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (346,071)    

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Government-wide Statement of Activities are different because -

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation or amortization expense. 

Additions to capital assets, net of dispositions 4,543,709   
Depreciation (1,409,427) 
Additions to lease assets, net of dispositions 177,691      

Amortization (97,261)      

The issuance of long-term debt (bonds, leases, etc.)  provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while
the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction has any effect on net position.

Proceeds from lease (177,691)    
Principal payments on long-term debt 461,714      
(Increase)/decrease in accrued interest on long-term debt 6,659          

Principal payments on lease 98,589        

Changes in other post-employment benefits accumulated by employees will increase or decrease the liability reported in
the government-wide statements, but are only recorded as an expenditure when paid in the governmental funds.

(Increase)/decrease in accrued compensated absences 1,272          

Changes in net pension asset or liability and related deferred outflows/inflows of resources will increase or decrease the amounts
reported in the government-wide statements, but are only recorded as an expenditure when paid in the governmental funds.

Net (increase) decrease in net pension obligation (228,081)    

Change in net position of governmental activities - Government-wide Statement of Activities $ 3,031,103   

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

(Page 1 of 2)

Original Actual Variance
and Final (Budgetary Over
Budget    Basis)   (Under)

REVENUES:

Tuition $ 237,000      $ 404,564       $ 167,564    
Tax stabilization appropriation 700,000      -              (700,000)   

Charges for services 423,000      87,322         (335,678)   

Education spending grant 39,645,397 39,645,397  -            
Intergovernmental - State 8,257,039   9,915,566    1,658,527 

- Federal -              158,019       158,019    
E-rate -              149,456       149,456    
Interest 100,000      205,888       105,888    
Other 253,199      418,906       165,707    

Total revenues 49,615,635 50,985,118  1,369,483 

EXPENDITURES:

Direct instruction 16,496,954 16,409,594  (87,360)     
Special education 15,218,875 15,314,992  96,117      
Vocational education 1,246,242   1,244,855    (1,387)       
Athletics 559,294      611,757       52,463      
Co-curricular 209,500      259,387       49,887      
Guidance services 1,094,433   1,015,114    (79,319)     
Health services 550,028      635,861       85,833      
Psychological services 30,000        -              (30,000)     
Behavioral services 1,100,443   942,754       (157,689)   
Other support services 115,844      215,368       99,524      
Instruction and curriculum development 585,110      586,770       1,660        
Library and media services 448,384      450,194       1,810        
Board of education 342,001      343,620       1,619        
Executive administration 329,743      364,107       34,364      
Office of the principal 2,248,964   2,252,638    3,674        
Other support services 137,617      119,886       (17,731)     
Fiscal services 556,192      617,415       61,223      
Public information services 50,000        27,614         (22,386)     
Personnel services 314,129      299,031       (15,098)     
Administrative technology services 1,375,366   1,622,991    247,625    
Operation and maintenance of buildings 4,396,312   4,614,703    218,391    
Transportation 1,584,031   1,694,558    110,527    
Debt service - capital construction 327,840      319,738       (8,102)       

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

(Page 2 of 2)

Original Actual Variance
and Final (Budgetary Over
Budget    Basis)   (Under)

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED):

Debt service - other 298,333      338,232       39,899      

Total expenditures 49,615,635 50,301,179  685,544    

EXCESS OF REVENUES

OR (EXPENDITURES) -              683,939       683,939    

OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES (USES):

Insurance recovery -              41,127         41,127      

Transfers in (out), net -              (995,741)     995,741    

Total other financing sources (uses): -              (954,614)     954,614    

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ -              $ (270,675)     $ 270,675    

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2024

Adult Building Totals

Education Trades Proprietary

   Fund      Fund       Funds   

ASSETS:

Current assets -

Due from other funds $ -       $ -       $ -           

Total assets -       -       -           

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities -

Due to other funds -       -       -           

Total liabilities -       -       -           

NET POSITION:

Unrestricted -       -       -           

Total net position $ -       $ -       $ -           

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

- 22 -



BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Adult Building Totals

Education Trades Proprietary

   Fund      Fund       Funds   

OPERATING REVENUES:

Tuition $ -        $ -      $ -         
Intergovernmental - State -        -      -         

Total operating revenues -        -      -         

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries -        -      -         

Employee benefits -        -      -         

Purchased services -        -      -         
Supplies and materials -        -      -         

Total operating expenses -        -      -         

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) -        -      -         

NONOPERATING REVENUES

(EXPENSES):

Remaining fund balances to CVCCSD (82,138) 3,088  (79,050)  

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (82,138) 3,088  (79,050)  

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (82,138) 3,088  (79,050)  

NET POSITION, July 1, 2023 (DEFICIT) 82,138  (3,088) 79,050   

NET POSITION, June 30, 2024 $ -        $ -      $ -         

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Adult Building Totals

Education Trades Proprietary

   Fund      Fund       Funds   

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers $ -              $ -          $ -             

Cash provided from state grants -              -          -             

Cash paid to employees for services -              -          -             

Net cash provided (used) by 

operating activities -              -          -             

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Payment (credit) to/from CVCCSD

to be made out of General Fund in FY25 (82,138)      3,088      (79,050)      

Increase (decrease) in balance

due to/from the General Fund 82,138        (3,088)     79,050       

Net cash provided (used) by 

noncapital financing activities -              -          -             

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sale of house -              -          -             

Net cash provided (used) by 

capital financing activities -              -          -             

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)  IN 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -              -          -             

CASH, AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

July 1, 2023 -              -          -             

CASH, AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

June 30, 2024 $ -              $ -          $ -             

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING

INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH

PROVIDED (USED) BY 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss) $ -              $ -          $ -             

Net cash provided (used) by 

operating activities $ -              $ -          $ -             

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2024

Custodial

    Funds

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 287,413 

LIABILITIES:

Due to other funds 125,018 

NET POSITION:

Restricted - extracurricular activities 162,395 

Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 287,413 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION - 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Custodial

Funds

ADDITIONS:

Extracurricular related contributions $ 157,204  

Employee elected savings 26,134    

Interest 410         

183,748  

DEDUCTIONS:

Extracurricular activities 142,033  

Employee elected withdrawals 26,134    

168,167  

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 15,581    

NET POSITION, July 1, 2023 146,814  

NET POSITION, June 30, 2024 $ 162,395  

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

- 26 -



BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2024 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies: 
 
 The Barre Unified Union School District #97 (the District) is organized according to State law under the 

governance of the Board of Education (the Board) to provide public education to preschool through 12th 
grade students across two communities: Barre City and Barre Town, Vermont. The District operates three 
schools serving approximately 2,300 students. Students from other districts attend the schools by tuition 
arrangements.  

 
 A. Reporting entity  -  The District is a primary unit of government under reporting criteria established by 

the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Those criteria include a separately elected 
governing body, separate legal standing, and fiscal independence from other state and local 
governmental entities. 

 
  Spaulding High School Foundation, LTD.  -  The District identified the Spaulding High School 

Foundation, Ltd. (SHS Foundation) as a discreetly presented component unit for the year ended 
June 30, 2024. The SHS Foundation is a legally separate nonprofit entity from the District. The 
relationship between the SHS Foundation and the District includes a financial benefit, as the intent of 
the SHS Foundation is to support the District. The SHS Foundation is reported in a separate column in 
the District’s government-wide financial statements. The notes to the financial statements focus on the 
District as the primary government. 

 
  The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The 
GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements 
(Statements and Interpretations), constitutes U.S. GAAP for governmental units. 

 
 B. Government-wide and fund financial statements  -  The basic financial statements include both 

government-wide and fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements (the 
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary 
activities of the District. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges 
for support.  

 
  In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the financial position of the District is consolidated 

and incorporates capital assets as well as all long-term debt and obligations. The government-wide 
Statement of Activities reflects both the gross and net costs by category. Direct expenses that are 
clearly identifiable with the category are offset by program revenues of the category. Program revenues 
include charges for services provided by a particular function or program and grants that are restricted 
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of the particular segment. Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

 
  Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary 

funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns 
in the fund financial statements. Nonmajor funds, if any, are summarized in a single column. 
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JUNE 30, 2024 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued): 
 
 C. Basis of presentation  -  The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which 

is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources, fund balances or net position, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. 

 

  The District reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

   General Fund  -  The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District. It is used to 
account for all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 

   Grant Funds  -  This fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources related 
to federal, state and local grants that are restricted to expenditures for specified services. 

 

   Food Service Fund  -  This fund is used to account for the operations of the food service 
program. The food service program provides lunches for the students of the District. 

 

   Other Special Revenue Fund  -  This fund is used to account for the specific revenue sources of 
the District’s after school program and other restricted funds received by outside donors or 
certain grantors. 

 

   Capital Projects Fund  -  This fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of 
major capital facilities. 

 

   Tax Stabilization Fund  -  This fund is used to account for resources that are voter committed 
for future use. 

 

  The District reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 

Adult Education Fund  -  This fund is used to account for tuition received from adult graduates and 
other resources for further education. 

 

   Building Trades Fund  -  This fund is used to account for the construction and sale of homes 
built by students. 

 

  The District also reports fiduciary funds which are used to account for assets held in a custodial  
capacity (Custodial Funds) for the benefit of parties outside of the District. The District’s fiduciary 
funds are the Custodial Funds.  

 

 D. Measurement focus and basis of accounting  -  The government-wide financial statements are reported 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the 
proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued): 
 
 D. Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued)  -   
 
   Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 

focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as they become both 
measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction that can be determined 
and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when the fund liability is incurred, 
if measurable, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when 
payment is made. 

 
  The proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund’s 
principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 
 E. Budget and budgetary accounting  -  The District adopts an annual budget for the General Fund at an 

annual meeting. The accounting method used for the budget presentation varies from U.S. GAAP as 
described in note 9. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control during the year 
for the General Fund. The District does not legally adopt budgets for other governmental funds. All 
budgeted amounts lapse at year end. 

 
  Transfers of budgeted amounts between line items require approval of management. The General Fund 

budget is presented in these financial statements. Board approval is required for interfund transfers and 
budget transfers between personnel and operating costs. 

 
 F. Use of estimates  -  The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources as well as disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures or expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

 
 G. Risk management  -  The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to 

and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and others; environmental 
liability; and natural disasters. The District manages these risks through commercial insurance packages 
and participation in public entity risk pools covering each of those risks of loss. Management believes 
such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District. There were no 
settlements in excess of the insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

 
H. Cash, cash equivalents and investments  -  The District considers all cash on hand, demand deposits, 

and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition 
to be cash and cash equivalents. Investments and unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the 
individual fund and government-wide financial statements. Investments of the District are reported at 
fair value using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. This is considered a level 1 input 
valuation technique under the framework established by U.S. GAAP for measuring fair value. The 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued): 
 

H. Cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued) - 
 
 District does not own investments valued with level 2 or level 3 inputs, which would use quoted prices 

for similar assets, or in inactive markets, or other methods for estimating fair value. 
 
 I. Inventory  -  Inventory in the Food Service Fund is valued using the FIFO cost method. Inventory is 

recorded as an expenditure when consumed rather than when purchased. 
 
 J. Prepaid items  -  Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and 

are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
 K. Capital assets  -  Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment, vehicles and infrastructure, 

are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column of the government-wide 
financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the 
District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in 
excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased 
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value. Major outlays for capital assets 
and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Net interest costs are capitalized on 
projects during the construction period. Normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
an asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the 
straight-line method over the useful lives shown below. 

 
      Land improvements 5 - 50 years 
      Buildings and improvements 5 - 50 years 
      Equipment and fixtures 3 - 20 years 
      Vehicles 5 years 
      Software 3 - 5 years 
 

L. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources  -  In addition to assets and liabilities, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources are reported as separate sections in the applicable statement 
of net position or balance sheet. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position 
that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources in the current 
period. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources in the current period.  

 
 M. Accrued compensated absences  -  The District’s policy is to permit employees to accrue sick leave 

benefits based on the terms of their employment contract. Teachers are eligible to receive $15 per day 
of accrued sick leave up to 100 days at termination. Para-educators employed 10 years or more are 
eligible to receive $20 per day for unused accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of 100 days. The 
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees - AFL-CIO Local 1369, Council 93 
union members are eligible to receive payment of all unused vacation time on a pro-rated basis and $25 
per day of accrued sick leave up to 100 days at termination who were employed 25 years or more. 
Accrued compensated absences at June 30, 2024 of $137,250 have been recorded as a noncurrent 
liability in the Government-wide Statement of Net Position but not in the fund financial statements. 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued): 
 
 N. Long-term obligations  -  Governmental activities, business-type activities, and proprietary funds report 

long-term debt and other long-term obligations as liabilities in the applicable statement of net position. 
Governmental funds report the amount of debt issued as other financing sources and the repayment of 
debt as debt service expenditures.  

 
 O. Fund equity  -  In the fund financial statements, governmental funds may report five categories of fund 

balances: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. 
 
  Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts associated with inventory, prepaid expenditures, long-

term loans or notes receivable, and trust fund principal to be held in perpetuity. 
 
  Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by 

constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. 
 
  Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by 

the District’s highest level of decision making authority, the voters, as a result of articles passed at 
Annual or Special Meetings. 

 
  Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are intended to be used by the District for specific 

purposes as authorized by the Board. 
 
  Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all spendable 

amounts not contained in another classification. Deficits are also classified as unassigned. 
 
  The District’s policy is to apply expenditures to fund balance in the order of restricted, committed, 

assigned and unassigned unless the Board specifies otherwise. 
 
 P. On-behalf payments  -  The State of Vermont makes payments on behalf of the District’s teachers to the 

Vermont State Teachers’ Retirement System (VSTRS) for pension and other postemployment benefits 
(OPEB). The District recognizes these on-behalf payments as intergovernmental grant revenues and 
education expenses or expenditures, as appropriate, in the government-wide financial statements and in 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds. The 
amounts are not budgeted and have been excluded from the budget basis statements; see note 9 for 
reconciling details. 

 
 Q. New accounting standard  -  The District implemented GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes 

and Error Corrections during the year ended June 30, 2024. This statement required the aggregate 
effect of the District’s restatements to be shown on the financial statements as well as note disclosure in 
a tabular format in the notes to the financial statements.  

 
2. Deposits: 
 
 Custodial credit risk  -  Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 

depository financial institution, the District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District does not have a 
policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2024 $80,299 of the District’s deposits were uninsured and 
uncollateralized.  
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3. Capital assets: 
 
 Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 has been detailed as follows:  
 

Balance Balance

June 30, 2023 Additions Retirements June 30, 2024
Governmental activities -

Capital assets, not depreciated:
Land $ 604,595       $ -           $ -            $ 604,595      

Construction in progress 3,875,860     3,940,534  77,069       7,739,325   

Total capital assets, not depreciated 4,480,455     3,940,534  77,069       8,343,920   

Capital assets, depreciated:

Land improvements 32,349         -           -            32,349        
Buildings and improvements 39,350,517   674,801    579,446     39,445,872  
Equipment and fixtures 5,806,619     119,662    934,083     4,992,198   

Vehicles 580,987       20,417      196,268     405,136      

Software 125,900       77,069      -            202,969      

Total capital assets, depreciated 45,896,372   891,949    1,709,797   45,078,524  

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements 32,349         -           -            32,349        

Buildings and improvements 24,818,145   1,100,548  375,574     25,543,119  

Equipment and fixtures 4,936,347     231,875    969,851     4,198,371   

Vehicles 350,828       57,737      152,667     255,898      

Software 125,900       19,267      -            145,167      

Total accumulated depreciation 30,263,569   1,409,427  1,498,092   30,174,904  

Total capital assets, depreciated, net 15,632,803   (517,478)   211,705     14,903,620  

Capital assets, net $ 20,113,258   $ 3,423,056  $ 288,774     $ 23,247,540  

 
 Depreciation expense of $1,409,427 in the governmental activities was allocated to expenses of the 

education function ($1,368,064), and food service ($41,363) programs based on capital assets assigned to 
those functions.  

 

4. Interfund receivable and payable balances: 
 

 Interfund receivable and payable balances, due to the pooling of cash in the General Fund for cash receipts 
and disbursements, as of June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

 

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables

Governmental funds -
General Fund $ -            $ 6,386,779  
Grant Funds 1,047,522  -           
Food Service Fund 1,124,407  -           
Afterschool Program Fund 221,602    -            
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4. Interfund receivable and payable balances (continued): 
 

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables

Governmental funds (continued) -
Capital Projects Fund 1,860,290  -           
Tax Stabilization Fund 2,257,962  -           

6,511,783  6,386,779  

Proprietary funds -

Adult Education Fund -            -           
Building Trades Fund -            -           

-            -           

Fiduciary funds -

Custodial Funds -            125,018     

Component unit - 

Spaulding High School Foundation 14            -           

$ 6,511,797  $ 6,511,797  
 

 
5. Interfund transfers: 
 
 Interfund transfers constitute the transfer of resources from the fund that receives the resources to the fund 

that utilizes them. Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2024 were as follows: 
 

Transfer In Transfer Out

Governmental funds -

General Fund $ -            $ 995,741     
Capital Projects Fund 295,741     -           
Tax Stabilization Fund 700,000     -           

$ 995,741     $ 995,741     
 

 
 Transfers from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund totaling $295,741 relate to the funding of 

capital related expenditures that occurred during the year ended June 30, 2024. Transfers from the General 
Fund to the Tax Stabilization Fund totaling $700,000 relate to funds moved to get utilized in a future year 
to help offset future tax rate increases. 

 
6. Long-term obligations: 
 
 Long-term obligations activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 is detailed on the following page. 
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6. Long-term obligations (continued): 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2023 Additions Reductions June 30, 2024  One Year 

Governmental activities -

Direct borrowings $ 4,205,938  $ -        $ 461,714 $ 3,744,224   $ 468,086  

Accrued interest on long-term debt 41,974      -        6,659     35,315       35,315    

Accrued compensated absences 138,522    -        1,272     137,250     -        

Net pension liability 1,696,185  121,082  -        1,817,267   -        

Lease liability 100,157    177,691  98,589   179,259     79,647    

$ 6,182,776  $ 298,773  $ 568,234 $ 5,913,315   $ 583,048  

 
7. Debt: 
 

Short-term  -  During the year, the District borrowed and repaid $3,421,503 on a $3,421,503 line of credit 
in the form of a 3.30% revenue anticipation note which matured on June 28, 2024. Interest related to this 
note was $111,521. 
 
In July 2024 the District borrowed $7,370,781 on a $7,370,781 line of credit in the form of a 5.59% current 
expense note which matures on June 30, 2025. 

 
 Long-term  -  Outstanding long-term debt as of June 30, 2024 is as follows: 
 

Governmental activities -

Notes from direct borrowings:

Capital improvement note payable, interest at 2.45%, matures July 2028. $ 1,180,895  

Capital improvement note payable, interest at 2.49%, matures July 2026. 180,000     

Vermont Municipal Bond Bank - 2021 Series 1, various interest rates. Annual
principal payments of $183,333. Matures November 2036. 2,383,329  

$ 3,744,224  
 

 
 Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within

July 1, 2023 Increase Decrease June 30, 2024  One Year 
Governmental activities -

Notes from direct borrowings:
  Note payable, 2.45% $ 1,399,276  $ -           $ 218,381  $ 1,180,895  $ 224,753   
  Note payable, 2.49% 240,000     -           60,000    180,000     60,000     
  VMBB 21 Series 1 2,566,662  -           183,333  2,383,329  183,333   

$ 4,205,938  $ -           $ 461,714  $ 3,744,224  $ 468,086   

 
 Debt service requirements to maturity are detailed on the following page. 
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7. Debt (continued): 
 
 Long-term (continued)  -   
 

Notes from Direct Borrowings

Principal Interest

Fiscal year -

2025 $ 468,086     $ 75,645    

2026 473,652     67,182    

2027 479,268     58,431    

2028 425,048     49,241    

2029 431,506     39,591    

2030-2034 916,665     122,902  

2035-2037 549,999     20,628    

$ 3,744,224  $ 433,620  

Governmental Activities

 
 
 In the event of default by the District outstanding debt balances become immediately due. The District has 

committed to pay its debt obligations with future budgeted appropriations funded with education taxes or 
other resources that can be lawfully used to pay these expenditures. Additionally, in the event the District is 
in default on their payment obligations issued from the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank (VMBB), the State 
Treasurer has the ability to intercept State funding until the default is cured. 

 
8. Leases: 
  
 The District has entered into agreements that meet the reporting criteria of a lease in accordance with 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Lease assets and lease liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 
was as follows:          

 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2023 Increase Decrease June 30, 2024

Governmental activities -

Lease asset

Vehicles $ 69,000    $ -         $ 69,000    $ -        

Equipment 249,616  177,691  210,945  216,362 

Total lease assets 318,616  177,691  279,945  216,362 

Less accumulated amortization for:

Vehicles 54,724    14,276    69,000    -        

Equipment 165,554  82,985    210,945  37,594   

Total accumulated amortization 220,278  97,261    279,945  37,594   

Lease asset, net $ 98,338    $ 80,430    $ -         $ 178,768 
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8. Leases (continued): 
 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2023 Increase Decrease June 30, 2024
Governmental activities (continued) -

Lease liability

Vehicles $ 14,240    $ -         $ 14,240    $ -        

Equipment 85,917    177,691  84,349    179,259 

Total lease liabilities $ 100,157  $ 177,691  $ 98,589    $ 179,259 
 

 
 The leases summarized above expire between June 2024 and May 2027. Amortization expense of $97,261 

was allocation to general education function in the governmental activities expenses of the general 
government. 

 
9. Budgetary basis of accounting: 
 
 These financial statements include totals for General Fund revenues and expenditures on the District’s 

budgetary basis of accounting, which vary from the totals of revenues and expenditures recognized on the 
basis of accounting prescribed by U.S. GAAP, as follows: 

    

Revenues Expenditures

General Fund:

U.S. GAAP basis $ 57,309,529  $ 56,625,590   

On-behalf payments - 
VSTRS pension (5,720,190)   (5,720,190)   

VSTRS OPEB (604,221)     (604,221)      

Budget basis $ 50,985,118  $ 50,301,179   
 

 
10. Pension plans:  
 
 Vermont State Teachers’ Retirement System  -   
 
 Plan description:  The District participates in the Vermont State Teachers’ Retirement System (VSTRS or 

the Plan), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system with a 
special funding situation in which the State of Vermont contributes to the Plan on behalf of the participating 
employers. The Plan was created in 1947, and is governed by Title 16, V.S.A. Chapter 55. It covers nearly 
all teachers and school administrators in schools supported by the State. The general administration and 
responsibility for the proper operation of VSTRS is vested in a Board of Trustees consisting of eight 
members. VSTRS issues annual financial information which is available and may be reviewed at the 
VSTRS’ office, 109 State Street, Montpelier, Vermont, 05609-6200, by calling (802) 828-2305 or online at 
http://www.vermonttreasurer.gov. 

 
 Benefits provided: The Plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, 

and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on the number of years of 
creditable service and are determined as a percentage of average final compensation in the three highest 
consecutive years of service. Eligibility for benefits requires five years of service.  
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10. Pension plans (continued):  
 
 Vermont State Teachers’ Retirement System (continued)  -   
 
 Contributions:  Member teachers are required to contribute a percentage of earnable compensation and the 

State contributes the balance of an actuarially determined rate. The State is a nonemployer contributor to 
the Plan and is required by statute to make all actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of 
member employers. Contributions as a percentage of earnable compensation are as follows.  

 
  Group A 5.50% of earnable compensation.  Contributions stop after 25 years of service. 
 
  Group C 6.10% Earnable compensation up to $40,000 
     6.15% Earnable compensation of $40,000 to $50,000 
     6.25% Earnable compensation of $50,000 to $60,000 
     6.35% Earnable compensation of $60,000 to $70,000 
     6.50% Earnable compensation of $70,000 to $80,000 
     6.75% Earnable compensation of $80,000 to $90,000 
     7.00% Earnable compensation of $90,000 to $100,000 
     7.25% Earnable compensation more than $100,000 
  
  The District’s teachers contributed $1,224,571, $1,143,927, and $1,077,353 to the System in 2024, 2023 

and 2022, respectively. 
 
 Pension liabilities and pension expense: The District does not contribute directly to the Plan; therefore, no 

net pension liability needs to be recorded by the District. However, the District is required to report the 
District’s portion of the following items as calculated by the State of Vermont: 

 

District's share of  - 

VSTRS net pension liability $ 43,455,119   

VSTRS net pension expenditure $ 5,720,190     
 

 Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System  -   
 
 Plan description:  The District contributes to the Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System 

(VMERS or the Plan) a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system with defined 
benefit and defined contribution plans, administered by the State of Vermont. The State statutory 
provisions, found in Title 24, Chapter 125, of the V.S.A., govern eligibility for benefits, service 
requirements and benefit provisions. The general administration and responsibility for the proper operation 
of VMERS is vested in the Board of Trustees consisting of five members. VMERS issues annual financial 
information which is available and may be reviewed at the VMERS’ office, 109 State Street, Montpelier, 
Vermont, 05609-6200, by calling (802) 828-2305, or online at http://www.vermonttreasurer.gov. 

 
 Benefits provided:  VMERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, 

and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits do vary between the groups included in the 
Plan, but are determined for the members of each group as a percentage of average compensation in a 
certain number of the highest consecutive years of service. Eligibility for benefits requires five years of 
service.  
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10. Pension plans (continued):  
 
 Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (continued)  -   
 
 Contributions:  Defined benefit plan members are required to contribute 3.75% (Group A), 6.125% 

(Group B), 11.25% (Group C) or 12.60% (Group D) of their annual covered salary, and the District is 
required to contribute 5.25% (Group A), 6.75% (Group B), 8.50% (Group C) or 11.10% (Group D) of the 
employees’ compensation. Defined contribution plan members are required to contribute 5.0% of their 
annual covered salary and the District is required to contribute an equal dollar amount. The contribution 
requirements of plan members and the District are established and may be amended by the Board of 
Trustees. The District’s contributions to VMERS for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022 were 
$173,509, $161,722 and $139,458, respectively. The amounts contributed were equal to the required 
contributions for each year. 

 
 Pension liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources:  These financial 

statements include the District’s proportionate share of the VMERS net pension liability, deferred outflows 
of resources for pension expense, deferred inflows of resources from investment earnings and contributions, 
and the related effects on government-wide net position and activities. The State of Vermont has provided 
the following information to all employers participating in VMERS, which is based on its calculation of the 
District’s 0.56737504% proportionate share of VMERS. 

 

Districts's share of VMERS net pension liability $ 1,817,267     

Deferred outflows of resources - Deferred pension expense $ 746,886       

Deferred inflows of resources - Deferred pension credits $ 176,947        
 

Additional information:  VMERS obtains an annual actuarial valuation for the pension plan. Detailed 
information is provided in that report for actuarial assumptions of inflation rates, salary increases, 
investment rates of return, mortality rates, discount rates, and the calculations used to develop annual 
contributions and the VMERS net position. 

 
 The District adopted GASB Statement No 68 in fiscal year 2015 and is developing the ten years of required 

supplementary information in schedules 1 and 2. This historical pension information includes the District’s 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability of VMERS and District’s Contributions to VMERS. 

 
 403(b) Non-Teaching Employees’ Retirement Plan  -   
 
 Plan description:  District employees who are at least 21 years old and not covered under the Vermont State 

Teachers’ Retirement System or the Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System are eligible to be 
covered under a 403(b) pension plan administered through Empower Retirement. The District contributes at 
various rates for certain classes of employees. In addition, any employee of the District may voluntarily 
contribute to this Plan; however, the District will not match these contributions. All contributions are 100% 
vested to each employee. At June 30, 2024, there were 190 plan members from the District. 

 
 Funding policy:  The District pays all costs accrued each year for the Plan. Total contributions for the year 

ended June 30, 2024 were $683,006 by the employees and $125,032 by the District. 
 
 



BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2024 
 
 

- 39 - 

11. Other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan: 
 
 Retired Teachers’ Health and Medical Benefit Fund  -   
 
 Plan description:  The District participates in the Retired Teachers’ Health and Medical Benefit Fund of the 

Vermont State Teachers’ Retirement System (VSTRS), which provides postemployment benefits to eligible 
retired employees through a cost-sharing, multiple-employer postemployment benefit plan (the Plan). The 
Plan covers nearly all public day school and nonsectarian private high school teachers and administrators as 
well as teachers in schools and teacher training institutions within and supported by the State that are 
controlled by the State Board of Education. Membership in the Plan for those covered classes is a condition 
of employment.  

 
 Vermont Statute Title 16 Chapter 55 assigns the authority to VSTRS to establish and amend the benefit 

provisions of the Plan and to establish maximum obligations of the plan members to contribute to the Plan. 
Management of the Plan is vested in the Vermont State Teachers’ Retirement System’s Board of Trustees, 
consisting of eight members. The Plan issues annual financial information which is available and may be 
reviewed at the State Treasurer’s office, 109 State Street, Montpelier, Vermont, 05609-6200, by calling 
(802) 828-2305 or online at http://www.vermonttreasurer.gov.  

 
 Benefits provided and eligibility:  The Plan provides medical and prescription drug benefits for plan 

members and their spouses; retirees pay the full cost of dental benefits. Benefits are based on the number of 
years of creditable service. Eligibility requirements are summarized below: 
 
 Group A - Public school teachers employed within the State of Vermont prior to July 1, 1981 and 

elected to remain in Group A qualify for retirement at the attainment of 30 years of service or age 55.  
 
 Group C - Public school teachers employed within the State of Vermont on or after July 1, 1990. 

Teachers hired before July 1, 1990 and were Group B members in service on July 1, 1990 are now 
Group C members, and qualify for benefits at the age of 65, or age plus creditable service equal to 90, 
or age 55 with 5 years of creditable service. Grandfathered participants are Group C members who 
were within five years of normal retirement eligibility as defined prior to July 1, 2010, and qualify for 
benefits at the attainment of age 62, or 30 years of service, or age 55 with 5 years of service. 

 
Vesting and Disability - Five years of creditable service. Participants who terminate with 5 years of 
service under the age of 55 may elect coverage upon receiving pension benefits. 

 
Total OPEB liability:  The State of Vermont is a nonemployer contributing entity and is presently the sole 
entity required to contribute to the Plan. The District does not contribute to the Plan; therefore, no net 
OPEB liability needs to be recorded by the District. However, the District is required to report the District’s 
share of the Plan’s net OPEB liability ($19,322,091) and OPEB expense ($604,221) as determined by an 
actuarial valuation. The liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 for the reporting period of June 30, 
2024. 
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11. Other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan (continued): 
 
 Retired Teachers’ Health and Medical Benefit Fund (continued)  -   
 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability: A change in assumptions can have a large effect on the estimated 
OPEB obligation. A decrease of 1% in the 7% discount rate used to calculate future costs would increase 
the District’s share of OPEB liability to $22,195,782, while an increase of 1% would reduce the District’s 
share of OPEB liability to $16,935,019. A decrease of 1% in the current healthcare cost trend rate would 
reduce the District’s share of OPEB liability to $16,613,121, while an increase of 1% would increase the 
District’s share of OPEB liability to $22,706,111. 

 
Collective OPEB Plan liability and expense: The Plan’s collective net OPEB liability is $779,534,909 and 
total OPEB expense for the year is $40,014,617. 

  
Actuarial assumptions and other inputs: The total OPEB liability used the actuarial assumptions detailed on 
the following page, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified. 

 
  Salary increase rate  Varies by age 

 Discount rate   7%  
 Healthcare cost trend rates 7.39% Non-Medicare 
      6.90% Medicare $300 Comprehensive and JY Plan 
      4.50% Medicare VSTRS 65 
 Retiree Contributions  Equal to health trend 
 Mortality tables   Various PubT-2010, and PubNS-2010 tables using Scale MP-2021 
 Actuarial cost method  Entry Age Normal, Level Percentage of Pay 

  Asset valuation method  Market value 
 
12. Fund balances: 
 
 The Other Special Revenue Fund reported $91,323 in restricted fund balance relating to the District’s 

Afterschool Program, $29,335 in restricted fund balance from donations and grants for the benefit of the 
Spaulding High School and related Spaulding High School Programs, $22,493 in restricted fund balance 
from donations and grants for the benefit of the Barre Town Middle & Elementary School and related 
programs, and $78,451 in restricted fund balance from donations and grants for the benefit of the Barre City 
Elementary and Middle School and related programs. 

 
 The Capital Projects Fund reported $1,652,167 in voter committed fund balance for future capital projects 

and $208,123 in board assigned fund balance for future capital projects. 
 
13. Central Vermont Career Center School District: 
 
 On March 1, 2022, the 18 sending school towns (Barre City, Barre Town, Berlin, Cabot, Calais, Duxbury, 

East Montpelier, Fayston, Marshfield, Montpelier, Moretown, Plainfield, Roxbury, Rumney, Waitsfield, 
Warren, Waterbury, Worcester) voted in support of the creation of the Central Vermont Career Center 
School District (CVCCSD). This means that CVCCSD became independently run effective July 1, 2022. 
CVCCSD continues to lease the current space from the District and contracts for certain services offered by 
the District. The prior Central Vermont Career Center Director became the Superintendent of CVCCSD and 
the CVCCSD board is composed of appointed and elected members. The CVCCSD board establishes 
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13. Central Vermont Career Center School District (continued): 
  
 policies and procedures and provides oversight for the Central Vermont Career Center (CVCC) including 

programming and budgeting among other functions. 
 
 During the year ended June 30, 2024 the District received $83,088 for contracted services with the 

CVCCSD as well as $347,787 in rental income. 
 
 District management is planning to close out the Adult Education Fund, and Building Trades Fund during 

the year ending June 30, 2025 as a result of the formation of the CVCCSD discussed previously. 
 
14. Restatements: 
 
 During the year ended June 30, 2024 the following re-statements were made to fund balances and net 

position as of June 30, 2023 as follows: 
 

Reporting Units affected by Restatements of Beginning Balances

Government- Component

Governmental Funds Wide Unit

Capital Spaulding

General Projects Governmental High School

  Fund    Fund    Activites  Foundation, LTD.

June 30, 2023, as previously

reported $ 995,741    $ 2,713,374   $ 22,181,181  $ 11,729        

Overstatement of expenditures
and accounts payable 72,832      10,000       82,832        -             

Unrecorded cash account -           -            -             18,669        

June 30, 2023, as restated $ 1,068,573  $ 2,723,374   $ 22,264,013  $ 30,398        
 

 
15. Subsequent events: 
 
 The District has evaluated subsequent events through December 30, 2024, the date on which the financial 

statements were available to be issued. 
 

 
 



BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF Schedule 1

NET PENSION  LIABILITY

VMERS

JUNE 30, 2024

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
   2024     2023     2022     2021     2020     2019     2018     2017     2016      2015   

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.5674% 0.5591% 0.5403% 0.5906% 0.5338% 0.4341% 0.4872% 0.5262% 0.5270% 0.5275%

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability $ 1,817,267 $ 1,696,185 $ 795,230    $ 1,494,118 $ 926,153    $ 610,788     $ 590,319    $ 677,252    $ 406,308     $ 48,139      

District's covered payroll $ 2,642,846 $ 2,529,712 $ 2,297,857 $ 2,158,848 $ 2,383,926 $ 1,990,900  $ 1,218,892 $ 1,407,752 $ 1,424,312  $ 1,369,761 

District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 68.762% 67.051% 34.607% 69.209% 38.850% 30.679% 48.431% 48.109% 28.527% 3.514%

VMERS net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 74.01% 73.60% 86.29% 74.52% 80.35% 82.60% 83.64% 80.95% 87.42% 98.32%

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS Schedule 2

VMERS

JUNE 30, 2024

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
   2024     2023     2022     2021     2020     2019     2018     2017      2016      2015   

Contractually required contribution $ 173,509    $ 161,722    $ 139,458    $ 120,570    $ 120,273    $ 102,567     $ 65,976      $ 79,571      $ 79,981       $ 73,669      

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contribution 173,509    161,722    139,458    120,570    120,273    102,567     65,976      79,571      79,981       73,669      

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            $ -            

District's covered payroll $ 2,642,846 $ 2,529,712 $ 2,297,857 $ 2,158,848 $ 2,383,926 $ 1,990,900  $ 1,218,892 $ 1,407,752 $ 1,424,312  $ 1,369,761 

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 6.565% 6.393% 6.069% 5.585% 5.045% 5.152% 5.413% 5.652% 5.615% 5.378%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
The Board of Education 
Barre Unified Union School District #97 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Barre Unified Union 
School District #97 (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated December 30, 2024. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. 
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective 
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
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instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Montpelier, Vermont 
December 30, 2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR  
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  

COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 
 
The Board of Education 
Barre Unified Union School District #97 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited the Barre Unified Union School District #97’s (the District) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. The 
District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Responses. 
 
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2024.  
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards); 
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our 
responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the District’s federal 
programs.  
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the District’s 
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District’s compliance with the requirements of each 
major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, 
we 
 

• exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

• identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and 
performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. 

 

• obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
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internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not 
identified. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2024, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. 
 
Montpelier, Vermont 
December 30, 2024 

     

           



BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Page 1 of 2

Federal Pass-Through Passed 

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor         CFDA Entity Identifying Through to

                Program Title                  Number       Number      Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture:

Passed through Vermont Agency of Education -

Child Nutrition Cluster

National School Lunch Program 10.555 4450U0972400 $ -          $ 642,848    

National School Lunch Program 10.555 4456U0972400 -          114,691    

National School Lunch Program 10.555 4462U0972400 -          53,455      

Total National School Lunch Program -          810,994    
School Breakfast Program 10.553 4452U0972400 -          246,991    
Summer Food Service Program 

for Children 10.559 4455U0972300 -          78,537      
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 4449U0972400 -          59,020      

Total Child Nutrition Cluster -          1,195,542 

Passed through Action for Healthy Kids -

Child Nutrition Discretionary Grants

Limited Availability 10.579 -          59,393      

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture -          1,254,935 

U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through Vermont Agency of Education -

Special Education Cluster (IDEA)

Special Education Grants to States 84.027 4226U0972401 -          770,063    
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 4605U0972201 -          36,793      

-          806,856    
Special Education Preschool Grants 84.173 4228U0972401 -          23,309      

Total Special Education Cluster (IDEA) -          830,165    

Title I Grants to Local Educational
Agencies 84.010 4250U0972401 -          1,349,534 

Education for Homeless Children and Youth 84.196 4265U0972401 -          25,763      

Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84.367 4651U0972401 -          143,897    

Student Support and Academic
Enrichment Program 84.424 4570U0972401 -          148,659    

Education Stabilization Fund 84.425D 4597U0972101 -          25,526      

Education Stabilization Fund 84.425W 4604U0972201 -          6,275        

Education Stabilization Fund 84.425W 4604U0972202 -          45,410      
Education Stabilization Fund 84.425U 4599U0972101 -          5,408,153 

Total Education Stabilization Fund -          5,485,364 

Total U.S. Department of Education -          7,983,382 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Page 2 of 2

Federal Pass-Through Passed 

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor         CFDA Entity Identifying Through to

                Program Title                  Number       Number      Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Department of the Defense:
Direct -

Junior ROTC - Salary Assistance 12.U01 -          90,309      

Total U.S. Department of Defense -          90,309      

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:

Passed through Vermont Department

of Health -

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment

of Substance Abuse 93.959 03420-09763 -          45,000      

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services -          45,000      

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:

Passed through Vermont Department of

Public Safety -

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 02140-84720-008 -          67,710      

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security -          67,710      

Total federal award expenditures $ -          $ 9,441,336 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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BARRE UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT #97 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS  

JUNE 30, 2024 
 
 

1. Basis of presentation: 
 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award 
activity of the District under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2024. The 
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the 
operations of the District, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in 
financial position, or cash flows of the District. 

 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies: 
 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures 
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of 
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the 
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as 
expenditures in prior years. The District has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate 
as allowed in the Uniform Guidance. 

 
3. Subrecipients: 

 
The District did not provide any federal awards to subrecipients during the year ended June 30, 2024. 
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A. Summary of Auditor’s Results: 
 
 Financial Statements - 

 Type of auditor’s report issued:   Unmodified  

 Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? No 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported 

 Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?   No 
 
 Federal Awards - 

 Internal control over major programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? No 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported 

 Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:   Unmodified  

 Any audit findings disclosed that are required to  
 be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516 (a)?   No 

 Identification of major programs: 

• U.S. Department of Education:  
CFDA 84.425D, 84.425W, 84.425U - Education Stabilization Fund 

 Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:   $750,000 

 Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?   No 
 
B. Audit Findings - Financial Statements: 
 
 There were no audit findings identified for the year ended June 30, 2024. 
 
C. Audit Findings - Federal Awards: 
 
 There were no audit findings identified for the year ended June 30, 2024. 
 
 

STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 

 
We consider audit finding 2023-001 to be resolved. 
 
 




